TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 4, 2010

6:30PM — Public Hearing — School Budget
7:00PM — Public Hearing — Town Budget

ATTENDING: Selectmen Matthew B. Dworman, Richard S.Poelaert & David R. Pendell, Jr.

Others Attending: Vito & Joan Kasinskas, Roby & Shaon Day, Ed Warren, Matt Gallant, Dan
Guilmette, Peter Gillligan, Conrad Moses, Joanna MGarry, School Board members Bob Nigrello and
Stacy Penna, School Principal Jim Eaves, and As8uperintendent Tony Baldasaro.

Chairman Dworman called this Selectmen’s Public tWigeto order at 6:30PM.
Chairman Dworman opened the Public Hearing foiStieool Budget.

PUBLIC HEARING: School Board members Bob Nigrello and Stacy PeBadagol Principal Jim Eaves, and
Asst. Superintendent Tony Baldasaro provided copii¢gise East Kingston Elementary School budget.

School Board Chair Bob Nigrello stated they weredtecting a joint public hearing tonight, with thehsol
portion first, and the Town budget hearing willléov. Chair Nigrello stated they went through thelget
process line by line, and came up with a bottorm ¢h$35,000 less than last year. The default buidg
$18,000 less than the proposed budget.

The budget is $2,521,570. Vito Kasinskas inquidedua the interest earned on the Sargent Fund.aldettse
school principal requests interest from the comfumials for the operating budget, and asked if treydcalso
use the interest from the Sargent fund.

Chair Nigrello explained that the special educabadget can be flawed, and last year they had eanar
article to add $10,000-$15,000 to the special Edl fibecause it can take up to $60,000 for a stuskfote the
state helps.

He explained they want to set aside $80,000 todngthe science curriculum to reserve over the tiere
years to purchase hands on items. They also wanitt$25,000 from the Sargent Fund into the special
education budget, and not from taxes.

They are looking to reduce the amount of the cgsatding less electric energy by using solar parmetts,They
are starting to formulate a plan to reduce cost#ie future.

They want to put investment into the building ahe turriculum.

Joan Kasinskas inquired why the speech therapyistad separately, and not included in the spesdalkation
number. She expressed her opinion that she thirskeould be all under special education, and ne¢ lspeech
pathology a separate line item. Principal Eavestioeed that it is the salary, and the reports hraflected it
that way. They agreed to mention it to Mr. Lunney.

It was noted right now the enrollment is at 205] #rey are growing slowly at a rate of 4-5 each.ydhey
predict to be at 210 in the future. It was notezlthre at 14% special needs, and the national gevésaat 18%.

Roby Day, for clarification purposes, noted theyedoon $2,556,195 last year for 09-10, and thegseg for
10-11 is $2,521,570.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 1



Chair Nigrello mentioned upcoming events. He stéitede are good things on the internet on the Kiagfston
Elementary School. It is attractive for people @nivto attend.

It was noted last year the school budget passelfoarthe Town, the default budget passed.

Chair Nigrello informed the audience there willdree warrant article for the teachers contract. dgreement
is a two-year contract with the first year withea@ salary increase, as the teachers are sensitikie
economy, and other items which total $12,000, &edsecond year will be a 2.25% increase, whichlequa
$39,000. He added the teachers will give up sondicakbenefits in year two.

The teachers will pay more, and the school willadess in the second year. It was noted they bharged
plans.

Mr. Day stated he is uncomfortable with the consuimgex down, and the expectation to be flat fer tiext
couple of years. He added he would do the oppdsitehe knows they have looked at it. Chair Nigretated
they had some good discussions before making nlaédecisions.

Chair Nigrello noted for 2009 the budget was $2,596 + warrant Article $15,000 = $2,571,195, aral th
proposed for 2010 is $2,521,570 + warrant artidi2, 00 = $2,533,570, which is less than last year.

He further noted repairs that were done at thedmg| they utilized SAU 16 maintenance, and hedote
Principal Jim Eaves worked hard to keep the costand

He added the school provides K-§rade, with two teachers per grade, for a totdidofeachers. He added Mr.
Eaves does a great job managing the teachers.

He added the 5-year enrollment outlook is: last €8, now 205, and in five years at 210. With this
information, no addition is needed at this time #rschool has a good name.

Joan Kasinskas stated the trend of the schooldlmerd has been unpredictable.
Chair Nigrello thanked everyone for their support.

It was noted the school deliberative session vélhkld on 2/1/2010, and the Town deliberative sessin
2/2/2010.

Joan Kasinskas stated she thought the school hredladgreat job with their budget.

It was further noted in 09 the cost per student $4&5500, for 2010 it will be $12,007, and the @yaif
education is not going down.

The public hearing was closed at 6:58PM, and the®&8amembers left.
Chair Dworman opened the Budget public hearingHerTown at 7:00PM.

Peter Gilligan, Joan & Vito Kasinskas, Ed WarremtiMsallant, Dan Guilmette, Conrad Moses, Sharon &
Roby Day were in attendance.

A budget handout was provided, including the bugddefault budget, and warrant.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 2



Chair Dworman stated the Board of Selectmen hadedowith each department to flat line the budgehash
as possible.

He acknowledged that they were working from theadkfbudget that was passed last year, includipgomed
warrant articles in the amount of $2,496,800. Tieppsed 2010 budget is at $2,575,000, reflectingerease
of $78,200.

The increase of $40,000 is the increase for thel lpayment for the police station, library, and @mation
easements, and the additional $38,200 is ovenadilfother items.

Chair Dworman stated they tried to flat line witkpértments, the fire department is less and the s@iste
committee was able to reduce the cost at leasO@7yth a new contract.

Joan Kasinskas inquired where electricity is intibdget? Chair Dworman responded under 4194, denera
government buildings.

Joanna noted the legal line item is at a signifisaim, and thought it should be decreased witlcétigower
case being dropped.

She was informed they may come back, and Chair Byaorstated that we need to be prepared for 2010 wit
other cases. We can't overextend, and don’t wahetoaught short.

Joanna noted in previous years the amount haddyeend $25,000. It was noted line 4153 is at $8541 in
2009; we expended only about $20,000.

Joanna asked the Board to be realistic. Chair bvaarresponded it is unfortunate, but we may nesgé¢nd
the money, so we need to appropriate for it.

Mr. Poelaert added they don’t want to shave it dbemmuch. Joanna still questioned the legal amaund
noted the cell tower case has been withdrawn. deldert stated they didn’'t know until recently tedl tower
issue was going away.

Mr. Guilmette added he said if the legal expense ma spent, it would be returned to the generad fide
would rather have too much than not enough.

Mr. Pendell added if we had the cell tower at $20,8nd two other cases, and the normal is $20j080ds up
quickly.

He added that we were very lucky that we did neeha spend it, but wanted to be covered.

Joanna noted this particular area has seen arasemver the last couple of years, and we are liging
everywhere else.

Mr. Pendell responded it is the most reasonablebeurfior now. He agreed it was a lot of money, asdied he
hopes we are lucky again in 2010.

Ms. Kasinskas noted in 2009 we budgeted $80,0G0paty expended $20,000, leaving $60,000 unspent.

She inquired about the amount unexpended, andni@sned that it will be added to surplus and usebiuy
down the tax rate next year.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 3



It was noted that they try to stabilize the taxer@hch year by applying some surplus with DRA.

Chair Dworman noted the trash contract has gonendand even with the Warrant Article that passealdd
the elderly housing developments, we are still déovr2010.

Mr. Pendell responded to a question about the lgltieusing developments that they all did maketsdl
appropriate necessary changes by October 2008atdesthem to implement trash pick up to be praviole
the Town effective 1/1/2010.

Mr. Guilmette added the elderly housing developmevili continue to have dumpster pick-up, and not
individual curbside pick-up.

Sharon Day inquired about Public Safety: 4210 idedDept., and 4299 - Special Details. Chair Dworma
explained the rate of special details had beereasad for 2010, and they are reimbursed to the Toha
increase to the police department is for 3% salameases and operating costs.

Roby Day inquired about the decrease in the fipg Hdadget. Chair Dworman explained the fire depluded
the approved warrant article to purchase SCBA’shf5,000. It was a one time hit, and not needeadar?010
budget. They flat lined to the default budget 063$,000.

Roby Day asked the bottom line is the default buggssed last year, how are you going to sell tiigét this
year?

Mr. Pendell responded there is only $18,000 betweemproposed budget and the default budget. Wbald
be about ¥z cent on the tax rate. That is his gdiels. The budget is $2,575,000, and the defadiRi§57,000.

It was noted the default budget passed, and theegtack by statute to execute the default budGéair
Dworman said each department used their defaulbewrduring 2009, and the Town can’t go over th&obo
line. DRA approved $2,496,800 including the apptbwarrant articles, and the Town can’t expend tvat.

Vito Kasinskas inquired about the $31,700 undes44health agencies. He was informed that thetfneal
officer is paid, and the Town has a contract witdgdn Mosquito. Mr. Kasinskas added he was thedorm
health officer, and Newton has had one fatal caseé asked if the money was warranted to be spenaskied
if it was a prudent use of the money.

Chair Dworman responded it is in the budget andwllespray if needed, and we won't if we find werdb
need to.

Mr. Pendell noted Dragon Mosquito has been corddhtt spray the school and Town. He added he doesn’
want to see the kids get hurt. He thinks it is pnido spend.

Matt Gallant added he is also a former health effi the past it was a warrant article, it wagedan a couple
of years in a row, and it was then decided to addo the budget.

Matt Gallant added in the future mosquitoes maguten the daytime as well as night, so it may Imeeonore
of a practice to need the spraying.

Mr. Guilmette asked about the revenue on page 6mR& Meals Tax, budgeted for $75,000 in 09 & 10e H
was informed the Selectmen’s Office just receivedl@9 amount of $100,000 today.

Chair Dworman asked if there were any other questio
Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 4



Roby Day asked about the salary review committeisant article. Roby questioned the change to the
Trustees of the Trust Fund for actual expensegjudéed an RSA that allows for TTF expenses.

Vito added when he submitted for reimbursementiraxpense he opened up a can of worms. What happe
if the warrant article doesn’t pass?

Chair Dworman responded it must be voted on attible®ay.

Mr. Poleaert stated the police chief had a warastitle last year for a cruiser and it failed, d@dwas unable
to purchase a vehicle.

Joan questioned the wording of “no fees” and “datdpenses.” Joanna questioned why the warramters
necessary. Why don’t the Selectmen just do theisaltor the elected officials?

Joan asked why the Trustees of the Trust Funds megr@cluded in the budget process? She askectéd m
with the Board of Selectmen. She added they werasked to meet with the Board of Selectmen.

Roby Day stated he agreed with Joan. He asked validhee others’ expenses reimbursed from are?
Ed Warren asked if he could inquire as he was ¢ryonunderstand what they were saying?

He added with the fire dept. if he buys somethireggets a receipt and turns it in, is reimbursed,iacomes
out of the fire dept. budget.

Joan responded they don’t have a budget; they Ibese excluded.

Chair Dworman stated it is worth looking into. Vjitthan and Roby are Trustees of the Trust Fundyéad
and Joan offered to quit.

They were asked how much they were talking abtwutyjdget for) and Vito responded $200, but ihis t
principal, not the money.

Mr. Guilmette added he thinks it is a personaléssund he had to ask them to let him finish whawas
saying. He then added he thinks they need to migethre Board of Selectmen, they need a dialogn 3tated
it is the principal.

Joanna added she suggests that they sincerelyabok removing the warrant article.

Mr. Pendell explained that it is his understandnogn the salary review committee, that the wargatitle
passed that covers 2007, 2008 & 2009 gives thetdewd the Trust Fund Bookkeeper $700 with no fees.

The warrant article proposed for 2010, 2011 & 2@4lRallow the reimbursement of expenses.
Joan stated she was on the salary review comnnittibe past.

Mr. Pendell stated in the past the Bookkeeper @fTttust Funds got $700, and the salary review careeni
(warrant article) is changing it to $700 + expenses

It was noted the last warrant article stated “resféand the new article states “actual expenses.”

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 5



Joan recommended they read the RSA’s.

Mr. Pendell stated he will look at it. Joan said sfants to meet with the Board of Selectmen.
Chair Dworman stated it is a warrant article, d@ntis within their authority to change it, theyowld.
Roby Day said it is a definitional point. Joan abke set a date.

Chair Dworman informed her to contact the Selectmé@ifice to book an appointment. Joan asked if Deb
would call her, and she agreed.

Mr. Guilmette inquired about the Warrant Articleespend $35,000 on Foss Wasson Field improvements.

They were informed that the Recreation Committésechfunds and were able to improve the infield] aeed
an additional $35,000 to finish the project. Theant to do the outfield and put-up fencing.

Mr. Guilmette inquired about the field being clogdde to mosquito threat) in the past, and woulsti good
idea to spend the money if the field would be dii¥séVatt Gallant, as former health officer, respmhtie
closed it when they were spraying, and then it @@ened.

Mr. Pendell added the Recreation Committee gotaegof $50,000 to raise the field and improve daga
They split the quote and did the infield, and nbeytneed $35,000 to do the outfield. They neetébet
drainage. Mr. Guilmette thanked him for the infatian.

Joanna questioned Warrant Article #4 about thedihgl Preservation Fund. Chair Dworman responde tise
about $20,000 currently in the fund, and they whatBoard of Selectmen to be named agents on titesol
they can perform repairs to the chimney and roghefTown Offices building. He gave the exampldoiv a
special town election had to be held last yeaxfead funds already in the revaluation capitalmeséund to
perform the required revaluation. Now that the Bloafr Selectmen are agents to the fund, they davelio go
to town election for approval to use the fundsvds also noted funds can only be expended foruhgoge the
fund is created for.

Joanna inquired whether the Board of Selectmendvagain, as they have in the past, include a Satets
Insert with the Town Report explaining each wariatitle and she was informed, yes. She addecdhafilestit
is important for people to understand.

Mr. Pendell added the Selectmen's Insert is deivevith the town report and the EKFA calendar praothe
vote.

Mr. Warren was asked to explain Warrant Article #8.stated the wording is as required (by DRAYgqgace
the 86 tanker. It is truly a need, not a want. pamp is too small, the frame is bent, and it is/@drs old. It
can't do what we need it to do. Only $94,000 isdeekto be raised from taxation, the remainder eftioney
is already in a capital reserve fund.

Conrad Moses asked if it was a bond issue andnf@asiied no, it is not.
Roby Day asked about Warrant Article #10 — Spdeadice Outside Revolving Fund.
Chair Dworman responded the Police Special Dedtdl has been increased for 2010, and monies relcetlle

go into this fund. Currently, the money has beeinginto the general fund, but this warrant aetislill allow
the special detail moneys to go into this accoundt@n be used to purchase police vehicles.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 6



Roby asked if DRA has approved these warrant egj@nd he was informed, yes.

It was also noted the deadline for citizens’ petis is 1/12/10.

Chair Dworman thanked everyone for coming.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to adjourn this public hearing at 7:53PM. Mr. Reet seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Chairman Dworman continued with the regular SelectisiMeeting with Peter Gilligan, Ed Warren and Mat
Gallant in attendance. David Pendell left the nmgptor a few minutes.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Public & nonlipideeting Minutes dated 12/21/09. Mr.
PoelaerMOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutesraten. Mr. Dworman seconded.
Motion carried 2-0.

REGISTER: The Board reviewed the check registers. Mr. PoeM®TIONED to approve and sign the
check registers dated 12/22-12/26/09 in the amoU$65,144.68, & 1/4/2010 in the amount of $519,288
Mr. Dworman seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

MINUTES: Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve and sign the nonpublic meeting minAtas amended, & B
as presented. Mr. Dworman seconded. Motion cagiéd

APPOINTMENT: The Board reviewed an appointment. Mr. PoeledTIONED to approve the
appointment of David E. Baker to the recreation cottee, as recommended by the Recreation Chairrodd T
Gibbons. Mr. Dworman seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

TC/TC: The Board reviewed a Request for Disbursementoti from the TC/TC Barbara Clark.
Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to approve and sign the request for $6.97 to Gltle Services, LLC. Mr.
Dworman seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Mr. Pendell returned to the meeting.

FIRE DEPT.: Captains Ed Warren and Matt Gallant met with tlbar@ to discuss the status of the fire
department. It was acknowledged that Fire Chieh&id is no longer employed by the Town of East Kiag.

Mr. Warren informed the Board of Selectmen thateat to Mr. Richard’s home and picked up all of dgeesar.
Everything has been turned in. Mr. Warren added¢émt to Mr. Richard’s home with approval from Cinagm
Dworman.

It has been suggested that all locks be changedh@wanted the full Board’s approval to do so.yragreed.

Chair Dworman asked if everything was under conant Mr. Warren responded yes, as far he knows.

It was acknowledged that a citizens’ petition hasrbsubmitted to change the position of full tinme Ehief
back to part time, and it will be voted on in March

Mr. Pendell asked if the department should betheftway it is operating, or make do with an intecinnef? Mr.

Warren responded for the structure and moraleetigpartment, decisions need to be made, and hglamd
have talked about it and they are aware of theilpiiies with the article passing or failing. Itas

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 7



acknowledged they have been without a chief forofititms, and thought for the structure and moratbef
department, there should be an interim chief.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 8:10PM under
RSA 91-A-3, II: para (a) The dismissal, promotiorcompensation of any public employee or the disting

of such employee, or the investigation of any casr@gainst him, unless the employee affected € ahight

to a meeting and (2) requests that the meetingpba,an which case the request shall be granted.

The Board was polled & determined the divulgencthefinformation would render the proposed action
ineffective & the information will be withheld frothe public during the public meeting Minutes ofidary 4,
2010. The results of the poll were: Matthew B. Dmian —Yes, Richard S. Poelaert-Yes, & David R. Pénde
Jr. - Yes.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public Meetin§:85PM. Mr. Poelaert seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

FIRE DEPT.: Matt Gallant informed the Board of Selectmen havdrinto the door of the fire station when
backing in at 4AM last Thursday, damaging the ammbcé roof and bay door.

They were able to get the door to close with tlaeléy, and the roof paint of the ambulance wasdozdt

It was noted 12 sections of the bay door need t@placed at about $62.00 a section. Mr. Poelaguired if
anyone got hurt. Their response was, no. The BoB&g#lectmen suggested filing a claim with the hawv
insurance company. Mr. Gallant stated they arenggivids for the repairs. Mr. Warren asked ifytkderather
they use the ambulance fund for the ambulanceng@ad Chair Dworman responded no.

The cost was noted to be under $3,000 to repa@ritaulance and the door. ($2500 - $2800)

Mr. Gallant was asked to provide the Selectmenfe®©ivith the accident report and quotes for regand he
agreed to do so.

REC. COMMITTEE: Mr. Pendell stated he spoke with Rec. CommitteaiiClodd Gibbons, and he is not
comfortable with asking people to cover the coghefalcohol he purchased, and Mr. Pendell do¢sink he
should be out the money, sOMOTIONED to reimburse Todd Gibbons the $100+, noting he neaisaware
he wasn’t supposed to, and the policy was notfaceét the time. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motiomiedr3-0.

Mr. Pendell added he admits he should have chefisedout he doesn’t want to see him out the money

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s Public Meeting at X5 Mr. Poelaert seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah G. Gallant
Administrative Assistant

Matthew B. Dworman Ractd S. Poelaert DaridPendell, Jr.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin 8



Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 4, 2010 — 20100104selpubmin



